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Ellen Mullane, the future Sister M. Euphrasia, was born in 1855 in the Parish Castle 

Magner in the Diocese of Clyne, County Cork, Ireland.  Her parents, John and Nora 

Mullane, moved the family to America during Ellen’s childhood.  They settled in 

Augusta, Georgia, where Ellen attended St. Mary’s Academy which was conducted 

by the Sisters of Our Lady of Mercy of Savannah who had separated from the 

Charleston Community in 1849.  Ellen is first mentioned in the OLM Council Minutes 

of December 22, 1882 which state that the Reverend JC Shannahan of Augusta, 

Georgia, recommended Miss Mullane for membership in the OLM Community.  On 

January 24, 1883, Ellen entered the OLM Community.  At her Reception on 

November 21, 1883, she received the habit and the name, Sister Mary Euphrasia.  

She was professed on July 2, 1885.  For the next forty-six years she taught and cared 

for the children at the Orphanage on Queen Street, Charleston.  She would have 

been living there during the earthquake of 1886 which damaged the original 

building and resulted in the erection of a new building in 1887.  The Home was also 

the Motherhouse of the OLM Community and housed only girls until 1901.  In that 

year the boys’ and girls’ orphanages were merged in the Queen Street facility, and, 

the Motherhouse moved to the Russell House on Meeting Street.  Sister Euphrasia 

continued to live and care for the children at the Orphanage on Queen Street until 

the early 1930s.  

         Sister  
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On February 2, 1933 the OLM Community celebrated Sister Euphrasia’s golden jubilee.  In the morning a High Mass was 

celebrated in the Mother House on Legare Street where the jubilarian was then living.  The Reverend Eugene Egan, O.S.B., 

of Greensboro, North Carolina, a relative of Sister Euphrasia, was the celebrant.  Friends and relatives visited throughout 

the day.  In the evening the novices presented a program of instrumental and vocal selections.  The following day, February 

3, the Sisters and children living at the Orphanage on Queen Street gave a program of songs and recitations.  The 

newspaper account of the celebration stated “Time rests lightly on this veteran 

Sister, who is still very active and who makes occasional visits to the sick of the 

city, for she is never happier than when performing some deed of mercy.” Sister 

Euphrasia died on June 21, 1936 at the Convent of Our Lady of Mercy, Legare 

Street, at age eighty-one. The children of the Orphanage attended the funeral in a 

body and formed a bodyguard as the remains were taken from the Convent.  Sister 

Euphrasia is buried in St Lawrence Cemetery.  

 

 

                       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Source: Bulletin of the 
Catholic Laymen’s 
Association of 
Georgia, June 25, 1936 
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Sister M. Celestine, formerly Ruth Elizabeth Kennedy, 

was born in Charleston on March 5, 1899 and baptized 

in St. Patrick’s Church on March 19, 1899.  Her parents, 

Patrick Henry Kennedy and Susan Cahill Kennedy, 

both Charlestonians, had another daughter whose name 

is not recorded, and a son, Henry P. Kennedy.  Ruth 

received her elementary education in the Academy of 

Our Lady of Mercy which she attended from 1906 to 

1915.  Two years later, 1917, she graduated from Bishop 

England High School with a commercial diploma.  Ruth 

entered the OLM Community on December 8, 1919 and 

was professed on June 23, 1922. For many summers 

thereafter she studied at the Catholic University of 

America in Washington, DC, and Marywood College in 

Scranton, Pennsylvania.  

 

Sister M. Celestine served most of her life as a classroom teacher.  She 

taught at St. Patrick’s School in Charleston, St. Mary’s in Greenville, 

St. William’s in Ward, SC, St. Angela’s Academy in Aiken, and St. 

Andrew’s in Myrtle Beach.  From 1955 to 1958 she served as the 

Local Superior of the OLMs living in the Sisters’ quarters in the 

Nursing School at St. Francis Xavier Hospital, Charleston.  Her last 

years were spent at Divine Saviour Nursing Home, York, South 

Carolina.  She died there on August 27, 1978.  Funeral services were 

held at May Forest, the OLM Motherhouse on James Island, SC.  

Sister M. Celestine is buried at Holy Cross Cemetery.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sister M. Celestine Kennedy 1899-1978 

Greenville, SC.  Seated: Srs. Martha Croghan, Genevieve Cross, Catherine Smith, Immaculata Codere, 
Francis Robb.  Standing: Srs. Gerald O’Brien, Ursula Riles, Celestine Kennedy. 
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Elizabeth (or Eliza) Bartley, the future Sister M. Magdalen, was born in County Longford, Ireland.  She was 42 

years old when she entered the OLM Community on August 12, 1832.  Our records provide little information 

about her life in Charleston prior to her entrance.  However, other sources note that she was a devoted friend of 

Mrs. Jane Corcoran, the mother of the Rev. James A. Corcoran, theologian, educator, and editor of the US 

Catholic Miscellany from 1850 to 1861.  Mrs. Corcoran’s husband, John Corcoran, died in 1819.  Following his 

death Mrs. Jane Corcoran continued to run a small grocery on King Street and raise her two sons, James and 

John, with the help of her friend, Elizabeth Bartley.  When Jane Corcoran died in 1832, having made 

arrangements for the boys’ care, Elizabeth entered the convent.  She was professed in November 1833, the 

twelfth member of Bishop England’s Sisters of Our Lady of Mercy.  In March of 1835 the Bishop appointed Sr. 

Magdalen the Assistant to Mother Benedicta Datty.  Following Mother Benedicta’s death in October 1836, Sister 

Magdalen served as Mother Superior until 1838.  The records state that she was the Infirmarian for the 

Community in 1841 in their Motherhouse on Queen Street.  She also served in the temporary hospital which 

Bishop England established for working men, members of the Brotherhood of San Marino, and their families 

during the fever epidemics which visited Charleston.  She was among the OLMs chosen for the Savannah Mission 

in June 1845. However, she returned to Charleston in February 1846 due to poor health.  The records for the next 

twelve years are silent concerning Sister Magdalen until her death on August 24, 1858.  However, the September 

4, 1858 edition of the United States Catholic Miscellany contained the following obituary.  It may have been 

written by Father James A. Corcoran, who was then the editor of the newspaper.  

 

 

 

Sister M. Magdalen Bartley  1790-1858 

Sister Celestine Kennedy 
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Diocese of Charleston.  Loyal to the Confederacy to the end, he resisted taking the oath of allegiance to the 

United States.   In 1868 he was chosen by the American bishops as representative to Rome to participate in 

preparatory work for the First Vatican Council.  Returning to America after the Vatican Council, Corcoran became 

professor of theology, scripture, and Hebrew at St. Charles Borromeo Seminary, Overbrook, Pennsylvania.  Under 

his leadership, its educational program emphasized modern scholarship and student access to a good library.  In 

1876 he founded the American Catholic 

Quarterly Review, a national journal of 

Catholic opinion on theology, history, 

political, and social topics.  After a long bout 

with Bright’s disease, Corcoran died in 

Philadelphia on July 16, 1889.  He was buried 

in the Cathedral of 

Saints Peter and 

Paul, Philadelphia. 

(source: South 

Carolina 

Encyclopedia)  

                              

                               

Rev. James Andrew Corcoran, theologian, editor.  Corcoran was 
born in Charleston on March 30, 1820, the fourth child of John 
Corcoran, a grocer, and his wife Jane O’Farrell.  The Corcorans 
emigrated from Ireland in 1816 and settled in Charleston, where 
they operated a small grocery on King Street.  John Corcoran died in 
1819, and James was born five months later.   

Corcoran attended the boys’ Classical Academy founded in 
Charleston by John England.  England sent him to Rome in 1833 for 
seminary studies.  In 1842 he was ordained.  Returning to 
Charleston in 1843, he did parish work at St. Mary’s Church and St. 
Finbar’s Cathedral and taught at St. John the Baptist Seminary and 
the Catholic English and Classical School. 

From 1850 to 1861 Corcoran served as editor of the United States 
Catholic Miscellany.  When South Carolina seceded from the Union, 
Corcoran renamed the paper the Catholic Miscellany, expunging 
“those two obnoxious words” “United States.”   The paper was 
destroyed in the great Charleston fire of December 1861.  From 
1861 to 1868 Corcoran was pastor in Wilmington, NC, and 
distinguished himself by his work to alleviate suffering of both 
Catholics and non-Catholics.   He served as vicar general of the                      

 

 

 

 

VARIOUS MASTHEADS FOR THE MISCELLANY 
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AN INTERESTING ARTICLE FROM CATHOLIC EXTENSION MAGAZINE 
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